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The Trustees present their Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2019. 

 

A Chair’s Introduction 
 

It gives me enormous pleasure to present this Annual Report for 

2018-19 on behalf of the Board of the Bromley by Bow Centre. 

 

The Bromley by Bow Centre is a unique grass-roots charitable 

organisation creating opportunities and transforming lives in an 

area of high deprivation and broad diversity in East London.  The 

Centre supports people to turn around difficult situations and to 

begin living fulfilling lives. We do this by applying an 

internationally-respected model that provides integrated services 

and using a whole person approach. 

 

2019 marks the charity’s 35th anniversary. Situated in three acres 

of beautiful, accessible parkland maintained by both staff and 

volunteers, the Bromley by Bow Centre is the first community-

owned integrated health centre in Britain and works together with 

a clinical team that delivers primary care to over 50,000 patients.  

The Centre team has long researched and recognised the impact of poverty and disadvantage on peoples’ health 

and wellbeing.  Thirty five years on, this impact is being felt more acutely than ever.  

 

Our aim is to address three issues that are having an increasingly negative impact and which are growing at an 

alarming rate - mental ill health, social isolation and extreme poverty. All are rampant in our capital city, all 

are inextricably linked.  If you have no work, no money or you are in debt, you can’t socialise, travel or connect 

with people. If you have complex physical or mental health needs, you may struggle to hold down meaningful 

work and form relationships.  Being dealt a poor hand in life creates many personal struggles. Low confidence 

and shame contribute to people’s feeling of being trapped, preventing them from accessing the vital support they 

need to enable them to thrive. It is a downhill spiral and many people lose hope.  

 

The Bromley by Bow Centre has brought back that hope for thousands of people from many different 

backgrounds. We have learnt through experience that having more friends, a sense of purpose in your life and 

the feeling that you belong in a strong community has a far greater positive impact on driving better mental health 

than medication.  This is why community development is at the heart of the Centre’s approach.  It is also why we 

pioneered social prescribing in the 1990s which has recently become national NHS policy, enabling all healthcare 

workers to link people with community services, advice and activities that can make them well and happy again. 

 

2019 represented a turnaround year for the Centre in financial terms.  While it was not possible to deliver a 

surplus through sustainable means, the annual deficit was significantly lower than in 2018 through a series of 

actions to increase income and reduce expenditure. As these actions have a follow-through effect and further 

initiatives are implemented, I am confident that the Centre will return to a surplus position in the coming year.  

 

It is a privilege to be part of this organisation and chair the Board. I look forward to the Centre building on the 

success that it has had over the last 35 years and working ever more closely with our community, our partners, 

our employees and our volunteers to transform even more lives.  

 

Professor Ajit Lalvani 

Chair 
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Celebrating 35 years  

A message from our founder, Lord Andrew Mawson 

 

When I arrived in the East End 35 years ago, it wasn’t 

looking very hopeful. I’d been asked to be the 

minister to a congregation of twelve old folk in a small 

run-down church in Bromley by Bow and there was 

£400 in the bank account and some rather 

dilapidated buildings. It looked like its best days were 

behind it! 

 

Today it’s an internationally renowned Charity which 

has created the first community-owned integrated 

health centre in Britain and has incubated 85 brand 

new social businesses across East London, creating 

over 400 jobs in the process. We support 2,500 

people every month with financial advice and crisis 

support. We run groups to connect people. We train 

them to build skills and nurture their talent so they can 

reach their full potential. 

 

So much has changed over the years, yet the 

principles remain the same. We believe in people and 

their in-built abilities. Just because someone has 

been dealt a poor hand in life doesn’t mean they’re 

useless. On the contrary, some of our most incredible 

successes over the decades have been led by people 

who’d previously been written off. 

 

And we continue to be a grassroots East End charity 

working flat out to deliver services and create 

opportunities in an area of high deprivation. We see 

the impact of austerity, acute poverty and 

disadvantage on people’s lives every day. The levels 

of mental ill-health and loneliness are rampant across 

this great city and the Bromley by Bow approach 

goes to the heart of the problem through its unique 

mix of connecting people with each other and 

supporting them with the down-to-earth practical help 

they need.  

 
We can only do this with adequate funding which is 

why our 35th anniversary year appeal is so important. 

The charity warmly appreciates the backing of 

existing supporters and looks forward to welcoming 

new funders into the Bromley by Bow family to help 

develop and grow the impact of its vital work. 

 

Lord Andrew Mawson and CEO Rob Trimble 

at a recent celebration of the Centre’s 35th 

anniversary, reminiscing about the 

challenges of the early days 
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B Strategy and Operations 
 

Bromley by Bow Centre in a nutshell 

 

The Bromley by Bow Centre is a vibrant community charity in the heart of East London. It has a national and 

international reputation for its highly innovative approach which inspires and empowers local people to transform 

their lives. The Centre delivers an incredible range of projects based on a unique model that combines social 

entrepreneurship, the arts, learning, social support, horticulture and holistic and integrated health programmes.  

 

The charity supports families, young people and adults of all ages to learn new skills, improve their health and 

wellbeing, find employment and develop the confidence needed to achieve positive outcomes they could never 

have dreamt of. 

 

We work with the most vulnerable people in our community, those who are isolated, facing physical or mental ill 

health or who are lacking confidence, skills or qualifications. The Centre operates in an area with deep-seated 

economic and social problems. This includes having one of the highest levels of child poverty in the UK, the worst 

acute mental health admission rate in London and the second lowest employment rate in the capital. 

 

Our vision is of a community where everyone benefits from the opportunities the future holds and where no one 

is ignored, excluded or forgotten. The charity’s mission is to use our empowering social entrepreneurial model to 

create a cohesive, healthy, successful and vibrant community that becomes a blueprint for others across the UK. 

 

The Centre was founded 35 years ago and sits in a beautiful three acre community park. People often describe 

the Centre as an unexpected oasis. 

 

“The philosophy and depth of practice that have been pioneered by the 

Bromley by Bow Centre is as far sighted as it is simple. It is a rare and 

invaluable compass. It has already informed and invigorated our own 

belief system and working practice here at the National Theatre and is 

a profound inspiration.”  

Rufus Norris, Director, National Theatre 
 

 

 

Meeting local needs 

 

East London is known for poverty. Over the past 120 years there have been lots of maps of deprivation and 

reports full of awful statistics. The Bromley by Bow Centre’s charitable purposes are closely connected to its 

location. The early initiatives of the Centre began over thirty years ago when some of the estates in the local area 

were deemed to be amongst the most deprived in Europe.  

 

For a number of reasons, including the work of the Bromley by Bow Centre, the overall socio-economic wellbeing 

of the area has improved over the years but it still has some extreme challenges.  Sadly, today’s grim facts speak 

for themselves, as highlighted below. 

• 28% of Londoners live in poverty and 40% of that figure are children and almost 50% of children in our borough 

are living in poverty 

• The Bromley by Bow Centre operates in the seventh most deprived area in England (out of 326 local 

authorities) 
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• 16 out of 17 of the local ward areas are amongst the 20% most deprived in the country with 12 of those being 

among the 10% most deprived wards 

• There has been a sharp rise in the number of people living with diagnosed and undiagnosed mental ill-health 

and the complexity of their needs is increasing 

• The suicide rate in our borough is 20% higher than the London average 

• 43% of residents in the borough were born outside the UK and many have poor English, no digital skills and 

low confidence 

• Poor nutrition and childhood obesity are major issues and the borough has the eighth highest level of child 

excess weight nationally 

 

 

“The Bromley by Bow Centre is the most innovative, forward-looking 

health and community centre I've ever seen. It delivers services in a 

totally holistic and revolutionary way because it has placed people 

and their lived experiences firmly at the centre of every single choice 

and decision they make.”  

Michael Sheen, Actor and passionate defender of the NHS 
 

 

 

 

A track-record of innovation and significant achievements 

 

The Bromley by Bow Centre is a national and international exemplar of innovation in healthcare and community 

development. It’s a model that has grown organically from a strong grassroots community approach, with a 

passionate emphasis on frontline delivery. It’s firmly regarded as being on the cutting edge of radical new 

approaches that have become recognised by policymakers, politicians and business leaders. Indeed, the 

Bromley by Bow model is often cited as one of the inspirations and exemplars for new national policy initiatives. 

 

Over the years the Centre has hosted two Prime Ministerial visits, four Royal visits and 52 ministerial visits. There 

are numerous dimensions to the Centre’s innovative thinking and practice that have attracted attention. Five key 

achievements stand out. 

 

1. Healthy Living Centre 

The Bromley by Bow Healthy Living Centre was opened by Tessa Jowell in 1997. It was the first of 352 HLCs 

that launched in the UK and marked the start of a significant movement across the country. In Bromley by Bow’s 

case, this was a radical coming together of existing community services with a progressive primary care team, 

on an inspirational three acre site. It was the first health centre in the UK to be owned by a community charity.  

 

2. Children's Centre 

The Bromley by Bow Centre was the venue for the launch of the Children's Centre policy in 2002 with Charles 

Clarke and Margaret Hodge. The Centre was in the first wave of pre-designated Children's Centres and was 

established as a national exemplar. The Bromley by Bow model was regarded as a fully worked up example of 

the Government’s ambition for the programme, building on the initial Sure Start programme. 

 

3. Social Prescribing 

In recent years social prescribing has emerged as a key policy initiative. The Bromley by Bow Centre is regarded 

as a pioneer in this work and is held up as a gold standard social prescribing model. The charity is now working 

on initiatives that challenge conventional wisdom on social prescribing and seeks to develop national provision 

that is more radical and less orientated around clinical teams. 
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4. Social Enterprise Incubation 

The Centre’s Beyond Business project is regarded as one of the most successful community-based social 

enterprise incubation programmes in the UK. Over the last 15 years, it has incubated 87 new social businesses 

(68% still trading), with a combined turnover in excess of £5 million and having created over 450 local jobs.  

 

5. Turning up 

One of the key principles of the Bromley by Bow model is that we keep focused on being practical and delivering 

vital support projects  for our community, day by day, month-by-month, year-by-year. We believe our ability to 

continue to innovate and challenge conventional approaches is profoundly connected with our commitment to 

remain a grassroots community organisation. In Bromley by Bow, we call it turning up! 

 

Strategic Plan 

We can’t stand still. We can’t rest on our laurels. The Bromley by Bow Centre needs to grow. Mainly because the 

needs in our community are increasing and we see new opportunities to deliver even more benefit to people 

living across East London and beyond. 

 

The pace of change affecting our community means that we need to do more and do it differently. We must 

challenge and stretch ourselves and be increasingly ambitious. We need to innovate, expand and improve. 

 

Our organisational roots are as a radical and disrupting group of people who don’t accept that because the system 

tells us to behave in a particular way, then that's what we should do. It’s vital we keep innovating and trying to do 

better whilst being true to our entrepreneurial roots. 

 

We also need to grow so that we can be more financially sustainable. We know we can make our organisation 

more secure by expanding our operation and by building even stronger partnerships. 

 

With all this in mind, the Bromley by Bow Centre’s strategic forward plan for growth ‘Seizing the Future’ was 

completely revised for 2019 to 2022. The charity has a profound belief that being healthy is fundamentally 

connected to being part of a vibrant community. This belief is fundamental to our Vision, our Mission Statement 

and our Active Values. 

 

Our Vision  

To transform lives by building a healthy and vibrant local community and to share our blueprint and help others 

emulate our success. 

 

Our Mission Statement 

We know how to radically transform communities where people feel disconnected from each other. We call it the 

Bromley by Bow Model and it is based on delivering integrated support that empowers people by addressing 

both their health needs and their wider social needs at the same time. It also contributes to creating stronger 

communities where people care for each other more and celebrate their diversity and common humanity in 

inspirational and creative spaces. Through delivering this model, the Bromley by Bow Centre will be instrumental 

in transforming the lives of 10,000 Londoners by 2023. 

 

Active Values underpinning our approach 

   

 

 

be 
compassionate 

be a friend have fun 
assume it’s 

possible 
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Project 2020 

At the heart of our medium term plans is a major £10 million redevelopment of our Bromley by Bow site and the 

creation of an internationally renowned hub of health, enterprise and community regeneration in East London. 

There is a significant opportunity for the Bromley by Bow Centre to take hold of its environmental responsibilities 

and create a more sustainable organisation and community. 

 

The Bromley by Bow Centre site has been substantially redeveloped over the last thirty years. It’s been a story 

of the complete transformation of a more or less derelict and redundant site into a hive of activity, the story of 

significant economic regeneration and the story of a how you build a healthy community through tapping into the 

human capacity of local people and by delivering transformed services and increased ambition.  

 

There is more to be achieved with the existing site and, over the last two years, the Centre’s trustees and 

management have been considering how we can develop the oldest part of our buildings, the 150 year old suite 

of Victorian halls and the 1950s built church. This is a substantial plot of land and offers exciting opportunities to 

create a significant step change in the Bromley by Bow Centre’s operation and greater financial security for the 

long-term benefit of the community.   
 

 

 

“Everything about the Bromley by Bow Centre's work is both 

revolutionary and common sense; it is still revolutionary to trust local 

people to lead by and for themselves. It is also plain common sense. 

Sit down and have a cup of tea, talk to people, listen to them - and act 

on what we hear, together. Their work is a beacon for all who care 

about social change.”  

Stella Duffy, Writer and theatre maker 
 

 

 

Summary of Service Delivery Activities 

2018-19 once again saw a period of change and challenge for our service delivery teams as we developed our 

plans for the future with more clarity about how to adapt to the changing environment. The continued reduction 

in public sector funding and increase in payments by results contracts has continued to be testing for our delivery 

teams, as has the markedly increased demand across all delivery areas from people in crisis and those facing 

significant challenges in their lives. Nonetheless, we have continued to deliver a wide range of services and 

activities with and for our community and remained a vibrant and relevant local resource. 

Employment and Skills 

The employment and skills directorate has continued to provide a range of employment services, from impartial 

advice and guidance and creating a workable action plan for the client and advisor, to a range of interventions 

and support programmes tailored to assist local people to move closer to work or training through the delivery of 

employability programmes and weekly sessions. This approach has had positive success in leading clients to 

move into paid sustainable employment, enterprise development or undertake and complete training. The 

demand for English as a second language (ESOL) delivery has continued to increase and our focus is on 

employment while using the arts and horticulture as a means to engage and inspire learners.  Our Digital Inclusion 

programme remains popular with our clients as we help them to develop essential digital skills for life and work.  

 

Our main employability and skills programmes have been designed to support specific client groups and address 

their individual barriers to employment. They have focused on improving confidence, emotional resilience, 

language and social skills, as well as the skills needed to find and sustain work. 
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Employability 

In the past 12 months, the team has engaged with clients over the age of 18 from across the London Boroughs 

of Tower Hamlets, Newham and Hackney. Clients have accessed the service through a range of channels 

resulting in 600 people receiving Careers Information Advice and Guidance.  Of these, 212 engaged on a 9 

month programme of which 101 secured employments (48%), 48 entered further education and 23 moved into 

active job search. We measured the impact of the programme using an embedded wellbeing assessment tool 

and a basic digital skills assessment as part of our registration. We are pleased to report that, once again, we 

retained the Matrix accreditation standard for careers guidance. 

 

• Create Your Future  

This project supports unemployed Black and Minority Ethnic (BME) women living in Tower Hamlets with 

employability support and ESOL provision. We support clients to become job ready and find work through 

one-to-one advice and guidance, tailored employability courses, confidence building, empowerment 

networking and information sessions developed with participants. The ESOL strand focuses on women who 

require language support with the view to transitioning onto the employability programme. There has been a 

significant increase in confidence and access to services for those reporting issues with social isolation.  

 

• WorkRoutes50+  

The project supports people aged over 50 who are long-term unemployed and economically inactive into 

sustainable work. Through focused one-to-one engagement, we support clients into sustainable employment. 

 

• Aim4Work 

Support for people aged over 25 who are unemployed and living with a common mental health condition (e.g., 

anxiety, stress or panic disorder) into work and training with up to nine months’ support and in-work support 

for a further six months.  

 

• Employer Engagement (embedded within our other contracts) 

This is the recruitment arm of our employment and apprenticeship team. It works on matching clients and 

prospective employers and supports all Employment and Skills projects. The team has built and maintained 

effective working relationships with more than 90 different organisations across a variety of sectors ranging 

from healthcare and hospitality to security and childcare. We work with organisations to understand their 

recruitment needs and use a client-focused approach to transition our clients to sustainable employment. 

 

 

Wade’s story 
A young job-seeker builds skills, makes friends and finds a job helping others 

 

Looking for work, Wade became an apprentice on one of the Centre’s 

programmes and his potential was quickly identified.  He then started outreach to 

encourage other young people to join the programme. He qualified for level three 

business administration and was taken on as a staff member by the employment 

service.   

 

He was later recruited by the Centre’s sports and activities team as a development 

officer and has made the role his own.  Wade connects with people of all ages, 

abilities and backgrounds to help improve their physical and mental health.   

 

“The Centre is so compassionate. The people are amazing.  It gives 

people a chance to really show what they can do.” 
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Community Learning 

• ESOL 

A total of 250 learners participated in our ESOL provision in 2018/19, which spanned three different projects. 

Courses took place on site and across the borough including Poplar, Stepney, Isle of Dogs and Bow. As a 

result, 90 learners progressed into education, 44 into job searches and four into sustained employment. Our 

courses included an array of creative activities ranging from an ESOL “café” where learners could learn and 

practice their language skills in a relaxed atmosphere to “Song and Voice”, which involved using music to 

develop language skills and confidence.  124 learners took exams and we achieved a 100% pass rate.  

 

• Digital Inclusion  

Our Digital Inclusion programme helps socially excluded people to improve their digital skills through using 

online platforms. Learn My Way teaches basic online support from using a mouse to booking GP 

appointments. These projects work with volunteers who act as Digital Champions and who host teams and 

small groups to support our sessional delivery.  We embed digital skills within multiple service areas across 

the Centre, offering class-based sessions in our recently refurbished Information and Communications 

Technology Suite and drop-in sessions within the Connection Zone. Demand for our digital inclusion services 

has increased dramatically, in particular for Universal Credit support. This year, we registered 600 participants 

on the Learn My Way contract with 200 completing the Online Basic programme and a further 300 accessing 

IT through tutor returns. 

 

• Welcome to Tower Hamlets  

The Welcome to Tower Hamlets programme supported migrants with less than ten years in the UK. The 

programme supports migrants to live successful and productive lives in Tower Hamlets, engage appropriately 

with a range of public services and become more active members of a cohesive community. 14 volunteers 

were supported to build their knowledge, skills and opportunities and between them, contributed nearly 500 

hours of volunteering. We supported 183 migrants through local engagement sessions to become better 

connected to a place or a community and a further 100 contributed to the development of a guide to Tower 

Hamlets specifically designed for migrants.   

 

 

Rebeka’s story 
Feeling isolated in a new community, Rebeka learns English, develops skills and finds fulfilling work  

 
Rebeka arrived in the UK from Bangladesh with her husband and a tiny baby. A 

degree-educated woman, she felt isolated without local friends or strong English 

language skills.  She started free English classes at the Centre and was supported 

with on-site childcare.  

 

Through Centre art classes, Rebeka built a social network, became proficient at 

silk painting and sold many of her paintings.  Her English teacher encouraged her 

to volunteer and this led to employment as an outreach worker and learning 

ambassador, encouraging others with experiences similar to her own. 

 

“I’m proud to have been involved with the Centre. It has changed my 

life and helped develop my skills.  It’s a place that provides a platform 

where we can express our true selves and help others.”  
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Communities, Health & Wellbeing 

The overall aim of the directorate is to improve the health and wellbeing of people locally and across East London. 

We particularly focus on people who face barriers including those with physical, mental, sensory and learning 

disabilities and health conditions that are often complex.  

 

Integrated health provision remains an important theme across the Centre’s delivery. We have continued to work 

with the Health Partnership, including through joint planning and delivery, the implementation of a shared Health 

and Wellbeing Strategy and through joint funding applications.  It continues to be important for us to bring together 

primary care provision and new models of public health programmes, social care and a comprehensive range of 

non-clinical services to improve the health of our local community. 

 

• Social Care 

A flexible, personalised programme supporting people with a range of learning, physical and complex needs 

to live as part of the community and as independently as possible. Individuals are funded through local 

authorities whereby personal budgets are used to spot purchase support. The programme has continued to 

grow in income and the range of workshops being delivered. We have 38 clients accessing a total of 273 

support hours per week. We have been working alongside Tower Hamlets CCG, Tower Hamlets Council and 

local disability organisation, Real, as one of ten demonstration sites for the NHS England Personalised Care 

Programme (PCP). PCP focuses on empowering individuals to have greater choice and control over the way 

their health and care is delivered via a personalised care and support planning process and access to a 

Personal Health or integrated Health and Social Care budget. Personal Health Budgets are an innovative 

approach to giving people with long-term health conditions and disabilities more choice and control over how 

money is spent on meeting their health and wellbeing needs. 

 

• Health 

This year, we delivered two Public Health funded services. The team provided specialist weight management 

services (Fit for Life), supporting over 350 new people through one-to-one and group activities. Fit for Life was 

delivered in partnership with Homerton University Hospital and local disability specialist, Ability Bow. We 

entered our second year of delivering Communities Driving Change - a three year flagship project aimed at 

empowering communities to take action on local issues. The core principles of the project relate to the wider 

determinants of health, health creation and social movements for health. It signals a move away from 

traditional models of service delivery to a model of community empowerment. 

 

The Health Champion programme, funded by Morgan Stanley, has supported 64 local residents to complete 

an accredited six week training course. The project supports residents to share health knowledge with others 

in the community and access local volunteering opportunities.  

 

• Social Prescribing 

We work in this area across two projects, a CCG and Primary Care Network funded generic Social Prescribing 

service and our Macmillan funded Cancer Social Prescribing service for people living with and beyond cancer 

in Tower Hamlets, Hackney, Newham and Waltham Forest. Adults referred via primary and secondary care 

are supported to access a range of non-medical services within the community. Demand for, and interest in, 

these services continues to grow with 638 and 720 people being referred to the Social Prescribing and 

Macmillan services respectively.  

 

The Centre is a leading member of the national social prescribing network and is funded by NHS England and 

the GLA for its research and knowledge. Commissioned pieces of work have developed through the uptake 

of social prescribing by the NHS, CCGs and GP Federations across the UK plus calls from both the NHS and 

frontline delivery teams for the development of training, standards of best practice and support in setting up 

local social prescribing schemes. The social prescribing team continues to support knowledge share visits to 

the Centre and national Link Worker training while positioning the Centre and Health Partnership as 

practitioner-experts and thought-leaders in this space. 
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• Sport and Physical Activity  

We deliver training and physical activity sessions to children, adults and families in Tower Hamlets.  This 

includes a volunteer programme for residents aged over 50 years (Fit for All), an accredited training 

programme for young people with disabilities including those living with mental health issues (PLA 

Programme), and a new three year family activity programme funded by Sport England (Active Together).  

We supported 181 people through our Sport and Physical Activity programme this year.  

 

 

Rafiu’s story 
From ill health and financial challenges to finding a new, creative way forward  

 

Like many people diagnosed with cancer, Rafiu felt he needed help to cope. He 

was referred to the Centre’s social prescribing service and, during one-to-one 

sessions, he talked openly about his personal challenges.  Help swiftly followed 

with the Centre’s specialist advice services provided money management, 

benefits and energy advice.  Raifu joined a support group to connect with others.

  

Two years on, he is enjoying exploring his creativity and supporting others 

through a film-making project for people living with and beyond cancer. 

 

“I was helped to find myself again after my diagnosis. They helped 

me find the right way to tackle my problems and how to handle them. 

Today, my life history is not complete without the Bromley by Bow 

Centre.” 
 

 

Community Connections 

The objective of Community Connections is to promote the cohesion and integration of the local community.  We 

do this by bringing together individuals and families to access a range of activities and services.  Typically, we 

are engaging with those who have multiple and complex needs, are on a longer journey of support or are 

becoming involved with the Centre for the first time.  The focus is on informal learning, volunteering and 

encouraging people to come together and use the Centre’s facilities.  

 

• Connection Zone 

The Connection Zone and its staff act as a vital gateway into the Centre and its services. It operates as the 

Centre’s ‘front door’, providing a welcome to all visitors and acts as the first port of call for all enquiries. We 

recognise that connections are a crucial part of the life of individuals and communities, so we provide a space 

where people can connect - to their sense of purpose, each other and their community. A key element of the 

work is to support the advice and employment drop-in sessions and refer clients to services at the Centre as 

required. Triage for the Centre’s social welfare and energy advice services take place in the Connection Zone 

and the team offers a safe space for clients to carry out job searches and access advice online. Over the last 

year, the team have strengthened relationships with primary care and invited local services such as Age UK, 

Poplar Harca and Tower Hamlets Community Insights Team to utilise the space and raise the profile of their 

services. We welcome, on average, 1,500 unique visitors a year and make 900 onward referrals per year. 

30% of clients access the Connection Zone three or more times a month.  

 

• Horticulture 

The weekly horticulture sessions continue to be successful in the engagement and support of people with a 

range of needs including social isolation and mental health issues. We work with 18 people per week. The 

sessions are a point of referral for the social prescribing and social care teams and also provide much needed 

gardening resources to help maintain the park.  
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• Arts 

Focusing on the Centre’s founding principles of believing in the benefits of creativity for people’s general 

wellbeing, we have continued to develop our arts programme and build relationships with the National 

Theatre, English National Opera, Queen’s Theatre Hornchurch and Bow Arts. During the course of the year, 

19 staff and local residents took part in weekly drama workshops and, at the end of which, nine participated 

in a production of Shakespeare’s As You Like It at the Queen’s Theatre Hornchurch. This is the second 

production in the National Theatre’s Public Acts initiative, inspired by the Public Works programme in New 

York. The cast of over 100 actors was made up of people from across London, connected to nine specially 

chosen community organisations.  

 

During the year, we successfully piloted a three month filmmaking course as a tool to empower and support 

eleven people living with and beyond cancer. The group made a 30 minute film ‘Mind the Dash – living with 

and beyond cancer’ that gives an honest and inspiring account of their experiences of diagnosis, treatment 

and recovery. The film was premiered in the Castle Cinema, Hackney (https://www.bbbc.org.uk/news/watch-

mind-the-dash-a-powerful-new-film-about-life-with-cancer/). 

 

• EastXchange (Timebank) 

The project focuses on three broad groups, migrant communities, people with mental health challenges and 

people aged over 50.  Through facilitating skill swaps between neighbours and communities, EastXchange 

animates spaces with activities designed and delivered by local people.  We provide the infrastructure to 

create accessible and inclusive opportunities for people to get involved, including those who are typically 

excluded from decision-making processes.  The activities that have been established vary from arts and 

creative sessions to book exchanges and information sessions supported by local organisations.  We have 

supported Peer Champions and a Task Group that ensures delivery reflects and addresses the needs of 

different community groups.  Over the last three years, the project has registered 550 members with 120 

people attending EastXchange activities per week. 

 

 

Tarana’s story 
Overcoming health challenges and a difficult housing situation to fulfil her dream 

 
Tarana experiences health issues and problematic housing which can affect her 

mood, memory, concentration and mental health.  She was referred to the 

Centre’s social prescribing service and then encouraged to explore her creativity 

by joining the EastXchange programme. She made friends and set up jewellery 

making and arts sessions which she now runs regularly for others. 

 

As her confidence built, Tarana joined a creative writing course and entered a 

competition. Her work was then published, fulfilling a lifelong ambition and 

encouraging her to become a writer. 

 

“The Bromley by Bow Centre is such a wholesome and inclusive 

community. I am proud to be a part of such an amazing and 

incredible place.” 
 

 

  

https://www.bbbc.org.uk/news/watch-mind-the-dash-a-powerful-new-film-about-life-with-cancer/
https://www.bbbc.org.uk/news/watch-mind-the-dash-a-powerful-new-film-about-life-with-cancer/
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Beyond Business 

The Centre has a long-established commitment and expertise in incubating social enterprises.  This continues to 

be generously supported by our corporate partner, Investec.  In 2018-19, six more businesses were established 

taking the total number founded over the years to 79. The success rate of these enterprises continues to far 

outstrip what would be expected with commercial start-ups and the whole hub has generated over 350 jobs in 

East London and these businesses have a combined turnover in excess of £6 million.  

 

 

Sam’s story 
Single mother builds a successful social enterprise providing education and employment  

 

 A proud single mum of five children, Sam’s passion is working with people of all 

ages who have experienced life challenges or mental health issues and seeing a 

change for better in their lives.  Sam developed the idea for a social enterprise 

business and successfully applied to the Centre’s Beyond Business programme. 

 

Her social enterprise, Find-a-Balance, runs programmes, workshops and groups 

to support individuals of all ages and families who are affected by mental health 

issues. They can access advocacy and guidance and receive support to get them 

into sustainable employment, education and engaging fully with their community. 

 

“Bromley by Bow Centre, thank you for supporting me to reach my 

potential and fulfil my dream to become a social entrepreneur and 

give back to communities. It’s been life changing.” 
 

 

Advice Centre 

The Advice Centre provides a range of free advice under the three broad themes of social welfare, financial 

health and energy. 

 

• Social Welfare Advice 

The Centre’s social welfare advice service provides support with debt, housing and welfare benefits both at 

the Centre and in 12 local venues. It is funded through statutory contracts including LAP 6 Mainstream Grants, 

Tower Hamlets Health and Advice Links, Information Advice and Advocacy as well as local housing providers 

and trust funds. The Centre works in partnership with advice services locally to provide support to specific 

groups including those with disabilities and long term conditions.  

 

Delivery of our social welfare advice was characterised by increasing demand for services, with repeat users 

making up a large proportion of demand, driven by welfare benefits, debt and housing issues. During the year, 

the team dealt with 4,472 matters of which 2,684 were welfare benefits, 582 debt, 671 housing, 268 utilities 

and 268 other matters relating to consumer issues, employment, immigration, family and education. The team 

also raised client income by £2.6m through new claims with £210k of backdated awards. £173k of debt was 

written off, consisting of benefit overpayment, utility arrears, council tax arrears, rent arrears, penalties and 

fines, and £64k worth of debt was managed.  

 

In September 2018, the Advice Service passed the Quality Standard for Generalist Advice and Advice with 

casework for Welfare Benefits and Disability. This is part of the Centre’s commitment to providing a quality 

service.  This year, the Social Welfare Advice team delivered a private renters’ project, funded by City Bridge 

Trust. It is the only service in the borough specific to private renters and the issues they face including unfair 

eviction and disrepair. The work is hugely valuable for those in our community who have the least protection 

and the highest risk of issues with housing.  
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• Financial Health 

The Centre’s Getting on with Money project provides one-to-one money management support including 

assistance with debt, income maximisation, managing money effectively and taking control of their finances 

through sessions delivered from nine locations across the borough. It also provides workshops in the 

community to build financial capability and resilience. A network of volunteers has developed a programme 

of community activities aimed at improving financial resilience. Activities include cooking on a budget, swap 

shops and a money-saving vlog.  During the year, 86 local residents attended one-to-one sessions, 156 

people attended workshops and 15 volunteers co-designed and co-delivered services. 

 
 

“Finances and money are a piece and part of a series of interlinking 

hopes, dreams, concerns, day-to-day challenges, relationships, fears, 

etc. that all affect one another.  Mental health is connected to physical 

health is connected to one's ability to work is connected to one's ability 

to pay off debts is connected to one's ability to give their child what he 

or she needs, and so on.”  

A vision, creating calm and psychological security  
Getting on with Money Evaluation, Autumn 2018 

 

 

• Energy Advice 

The Centre provides energy advice aimed at reducing and managing fuel debt, maximising income, reducing 

fuel poverty and improving energy efficiency (East End Energy Fit).  During the year, we saw over 1,000 

clients who were supported to manage £300k of utility debt, increase income by £900k, secure £85k worth in 

awards and save £20k by switching tariff and/or provider.  In October 2018, the team received three year 

continuation funding to deliver the East End Energy Fit project until 2021 and secured funding from British 

Gas Energy Trust to provide emergency credit and energy efficiency items.  The team will be training ten 

Ofgem members of staff in the coming months who will volunteer at the weekly Energy Advice drop-in 

sessions.  This will provide Ofgem staff with insights into the issues faced by local residents. 

 

Insights 

The aim of the Bromley by Bow Insights team is to work across organisations and our community to better 

understand, develop and share the Centre’s principles, model and learning. We do this by researching our model, 

its mechanisms and impact in the community as well as supporting teams and stakeholders to learn and innovate. 

We also work to support others to develop their own effective responses to their community’s needs and 

aspirations. Additionally, we work to influence policy and practice at national and local levels. The team has 

continued to expand its work in 2018-19, with a significant focus on social prescribing.  Social Prescribing became 

national policy and we are working with the Greater London Authority, NHS England and other partners to support 

its scale-up and development in London.  

 

• Research and Evaluation 

This year saw us embedding the findings from the Unleashing Healthy Communities research and evaluation 

programme, which was sponsored by Public Health England, the Wellcome Trust, the Health Foundation and 

others.  The Centre and the Bromley by Bow Health Partnership formally adopted the BbB Outcomes 

Framework which was developed as a result of the research. In 2018/19, a new role was created of Research 

and Evaluation Coordinator, which enables us to work across the Centre to develop a more consistent 

approach to research and evaluation. This year, the programmes involved were Community Connections and 

Macmillan Social Prescribing. 
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“We published the results of our two-year, embedded research project.  

The project was supported by founding partners Public Health England 

and the Wellcome Trust.  It created a deeper understanding of the 

Bromley by Bow model, with a particular focus on the mechanisms 

which work to improve health and wellbeing and the social determinants 

of health.  This research project provided a set of aspirational outcomes 

to help us tell our story and measure our impact.”  

Unleashing Healthy Communities  
Researching the Bromley by Bow model, Summer 2018 

 

• Knowledge Share  

The Knowledge Share programme continued to expand and during 2018/19 as we delivered over 100 events 

attracting over 1,400 participants from the UK and 14 other countries. These events included monthly Insight 

Tours, Seminars on Social Prescribing and almost 90 study visits and bespoke group study workshops. 

Significant visits included a government group from Seoul which is establishing a Social Prescribing and 

community hub model. Our developing consultancy practice has seen further growth to support organisations 

to establish community hubs. We are working with the GLA to support the co-commissioning of Social 

Prescribing and to scale up Social Prescribing and Social Welfare Advice in health settings across London. 

We have developed training programmes for social prescribing link workers (accredited and non-accredited) 

and hosted social prescribing events including a Social Prescribing Day celebration that attracted a wide 

range of participants from across the public and community sectors.  

 

• Innovation 

We have continued to build upon our track record of developing and sharing innovative practice and we are 

actively engaged in policy development around the transformation of provision and reorientation of resources 

to more effectively improve the health and wellbeing of our communities.  In 2018/19, we supported a 

Community Day of Learning and Action, held Community Engagement activities in collaboration with the BbB 

Health Partnership, delivered a Healthy Environments workshop with CLOD and the Wellcome Collection and 

showcased, in the Science Museum, the Social Determinants of Health Game developed by a local GP. 

 

Forward plans in Service Delivery 

 

A key strand of our Strategic Plan is to redefine our service delivery model and agree a new blueprint for our 

activities and services. We began the review in the spring of 2019 and involved the whole of our staff team along 

with clients and partners. In renewing our delivery model, we have built on what we do already. Our existing 

projects are well aligned with our vision and have been delivering tremendous value to our community. We want 

to sustain and grow these existing services moving forward and make them even better.  

 

We also want to plug the gaps and deliver more services for our community. Some of the changes we are 

planning include: 

• being more integrated with the BbB Partnership with open and effective referral routes; 

• working holistically across the broad range of our clients’ complex needs for the long-term; 

• further establishing the principle of co-production that is people, rather than funder, centred;  

• re-elevating the role of the arts and creativity in our model; 

• improving our understanding of the external environment affecting our community; 

• ensuring that we have a healthy, trained and supported workforce; 

• innovating across all of our activities, developing creative and forward thinking solutions; 

• improving our expertise especially with regard to those with disabilities, young people and children; and   

• doing more partnership working. 
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The redefined model will enable us to: 

• create strong funder propositions to ensure our projects are adequately funded and resourced and thereby 

develop a more effective financial model; 

• redesign our infrastructure to be more effective and efficient; and 

• retain the hallmarks of our existing model – creativity, entrepreneurship and innovation. 

 

We are building on the findings of the Unleashing Healthy Communities research to develop services in line with 

our overarching outcomes.  The Bromley by Bow model is designed to be dynamic and the boundaries between 

projects will inevitably be blurred. Whilst projects have an administrative and management home in one of the 

core areas, they are positively encouraged to work across the holistic range of our work, driven by the needs of 

our clients and community. We know there is scope to grow the existing areas of service delivery and sufficient 

demand from our clients to justify it. There are specific service areas where there is both concern and need that 

are being met by our current service offers.  It remains an ongoing challenge to ensure that funding is available 

to meet these concerns and needs. 

 

Employment and Skills  

 

Our focus in 2019/20 is aligned with the priorities identified in the range of opportunities emerging from cross 

Government-led initiatives and from the Mayor of London. The Skills for Londoners strategy for the whole of 

London has three key priorities: 

• empower all Londoners to access the education and skills in society and progress in education; 

• meet the needs of London’s economy and employers, now and in the future; and 

• deliver a strategic city-wide technical skills and adult education offer. 

 

Our employment and skills offer is being re-designed to meet these priorities in a way that inspires and empowers 

our community through co-production and innovation. Our approach to service design is being informed by the 

emergent findings and the learning gleaned from our research and knowledge share activities. The team has 

started to develop a dynamic approach to English language teaching through a Creative ESOL curriculum of 

drama and the arts. The concept of a Breakthrough Academy is being shaped as a proposition to look at a holistic 

approach of the journey of an individual. The Unleashing Healthy Communities Outcome Framework is shaping 

our delivery.  The team is aligning any new activities to this framework to create courses that create stronger, 

more confident and integrated communities and designing new community-based family initiatives as part of our 

commitment to enabling the local community to have better opportunities. 

 

Communities, Health & Wellbeing 

 

• Social Care 

We will develop our existing services by supporting the needs of people with more complex requirements.  

We plan to work with other local organisations to create opportunities for our clients to enter employment.  We 

will continue to develop our volunteering opportunities and create a pathway to support people to develop 

their skills for a career in health and social care.  We have proposals in place to become a Carers Hub, a point 

of contact for carers contacting the Centre to link them into our range of services, including specific provisions 

to support carers. 

 

• Social Prescribing 

There is a demand for more provision of our generalist service as well as specialist social prescribing services 

to meet the needs of people with specific conditions. We aim to embed the principles of social prescribing 

across service delivery, including having trained professional staff working in a person-centred, holistic way, 

connecting people to wider support in the community. We will be seeking funding to enable us to provide 

support to accompanying people to sessions and offer a greater selection of activities and social groups.  
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• Sport & Physical Activity Team 

We will continue to expand the range of activities that we offer to encourage people into physical activity. We 

will be delivering seven projects within the next year with over 100 people attending YMCA Community 

Activator training and approximately 100 families attending one-to-ones and group sessions. We have been 

successful in securing a number of funding applications including from the Home Office, GLA Active 

Londoners and GLA Young Londoners, ensuring growth in our training and physical activity provision in 

2019/20. 

 

Community Connections 

 

We will continue to focus on the broad areas of need in our community. We are actively exploring how we can 

increase our provision, either through increased funding or partnerships with local organisations. We plan to 

develop an estate-based connector’s project supporting grassroots community-designed and led projects. This 

builds on lessons learned through innovative projects such as Communities Driving Change and EastXchange. 

 

• Connection Zone 

We will be reviewing our Connection Zone function and introducing new activities to ensure the service reflects 

the needs and preferences of the local community. We will refresh and expand the role for our Connection 

Zone, which encompasses both the informal welcome and hosting function, with a “community triage” 

approach.  We will set up and manage a Community Fridge within the Connection Zone. 

 

• Arts 

We will be developing our partnership with the National Theatre and Queen’s Theatre Hornchurch.  With the 

ever-growing evidence on the importance of arts and culture on wellbeing, we have developed our arts 

strategy with the aim of reinvigorating the arts and to effect social change within our community. The strategy 

has three strands, participation, education and performance. A number of new initiatives will be launched 

including a community choir and photography programme culminating in a cultural celebration to mark the 

Centre’s 35 year anniversary.  

 

We are developing our space as an arts venue.  Increasing the amount of arts activities and horticulture 

services could have benefits not only for those with mental health and social isolation needs but also allow 

our local community to engage and celebrate our diversity and cohesion. 

 

Beyond Business 

For the year 2018-19, we will be able to launch six businesses again. We are also are establishing a series of 

events with established winners to look at ways of helping them to scale up. Previously we have just focused on 

the start-up phase. We will also explore how potential social enterprises can be incorporated within the Bromley 

by Bow Model. 

 

Advice Centre 

We are continuing to develop, expand and better integrate our current provision to meet the increase in demand 

for advice services. Our service will focus on five key areas, family support, social welfare, legal, money 

management and debt. We have plans in place to offer advice in health settings and place social welfare advisors 

in GP surgeries. We will work in partnership to provide a specialist debt management and financial capability 

service, offer community-led financial education including workshops and volunteering, and support our trained 

Energy Champions to build community knowledge on energy saving. We will utilise the outcomes framework in 

order to measure the impact of the Advice Service. 
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Insights  

We will continue to establish the position of the Centre and Health Partnership as research, learning and sharing 

organisations, both internally and externally.  We will support the development of a social movement for health 

that utilises community asset and place-based approaches based on principles of co-production, and moves 

away from a purely biomedical understanding of health.  We will influence to change conditions to support the 

development of vibrant and healthy communities, both in east London, throughout the UK and internationally 

 

Fundraising Strategy  

Our three year fundraising strategy is clear: growth.  This growth will enable us to do more for our community 

and others who need our help most.  Our approach to fundraising and our development efforts has two parts.  

The first is accessing restricted income for funding to deliver our charitable activities.  The fall in restricted income 

during 2019 to £2,792k (£3,032 in 2018) was partly due to a number of major contracts coming to an end and 

partly due to the Development team being under strength for some of the year.  The second part is raising 

unrestricted income which grew in total to £1,144k (£721k in 2018) due to donations from multiple sources. 

 

Looking ahead, we have ambitious plans to grow both restricted and unrestricted income over the next three 

years.  For funding charitable activities, we will emphasise the value of long term support to meet the Centre’s 

goals. For unrestricted income, multiple activities to support our 35th anniversary year appeal are being 

undertaken and Project 2020 will be an opportunity to re-engage and unlock funding from past, current and 

prospective supporters. 

 

All fundraising is done directly by the Charity as we do not utilise professional fundraisers or commercial 

participators.  During the year, there were no complaints received by the Charity about any fundraising activities.  

 

People Strategy  

The Bromley by Bow Centre has continued to implement key initiatives from our people strategy - Everyone 

Matters – that was launched in March 2017. The initiatives have largely been driven by the work undertaken by 

the ‘People’ workstream group that was established last year as part of our approach to empowering project 

managers at a strategic level within the organisation.  Initiatives include: 

• the launch of a Workforce Wellbeing package of support for staff including an Employee Assistance 

Programme; 

• improving our maternity pay package; 

• building on the achievement of our Investors in Volunteers (IiV) status at the end of 2018; 

• launching a number of new HR policies including flexible working; 

• providing one to one confidential support from our Wellbeing Manager; and 

• holding reflective practice sessions with service teams. 
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C Structure, Governance and Management 
 

The Bromley by Bow Centre is a registered charity (number 1041653) and is constituted as a company registered 

in England & Wales (number 2942840) and limited by guarantee. Its objects and powers are set out in its 

Memorandum and Articles of Association which were adopted in 1994. The Articles of Association were updated 

during the year ended 30 June 2018. 

 

We have continued to develop our policies and practices and this year’s annual report takes us further down the 

road of good practice in terms of reporting and disclosure.  The Board and its sub-committees continue to review 

overall effectiveness in line with good practice. 

 

Public Benefit  

 

We have referred to the Charity Commission’s general guidance on Public Benefit when reviewing our aims and 

objectives and in planning our future activities. In particular, the Trustees have considered how the planned 

activities of the organisation will contribute to the aims and objectives that have been established for the charity. 

 

Objectives  

 

The Bromley by Bow Centre is a pioneering community regeneration charity operating from a location between 

the Olympic Park and Canary Wharf in the London Borough of Tower Hamlets, one of the most deprived parts 

of the country. The charity’s aim is to remove the label ‘deprived’ from its community and its holistic approach 

recognises that deprivation is often rooted in a series of interconnected personal and/or family issues that require 

integrated and holistic solutions. 

 

The Objects of the charity, as set out in the Articles of Association, state that “The Centre’s objects are to promote 

the benefit of the inhabitants of East London and surrounding areas either alone or by associating together the 

inhabitants and the local authorities, voluntary and other organisations to advance education, protect and 

preserve health, relieve poverty, sickness and distress and provide recreational facilities and any such charitable 

purposes as the trustees shall from time to time decide.”   

 

Trustees and their responsibilities  

 

The governing body is the Board of Management (“Board”) whose members are elected by the charity’s 

membership at the Annual General Meeting and are directors for the purpose of company law and trustees for 

the purpose of charity law.  In this report, they are referred to as trustees, to distinguish them from Executive 

Leadership Group ("ELG") members who are also referred to as directors on page 25 as they are not Directors 

as defined in Company Law. The Board met five times during the year. All Board meetings were attended by the 

Chief Executive.  ELG members attended the annual general meeting, the budget meeting plus other selected 

meetings as required by agenda items. 

 

The Board comprises a minimum of six and maximum of 15 Trustees and is currently at a level which the Board 

feels adequately represents the needs of the charity. The number of seats on the Board available to Nominees 

(i.e., Trustees nominated by partner organisations) is three. There are currently 12 members of the Board. 

Trustees serve an initial term of three years and can be elected for a maximum of 12 years.  
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The principal responsibilities of the trustees, as set out in the Statement of Reserved Powers and Delegated 

Authorities policy, are listed below. 

• Oversight of the charity, including control and accountability systems 

• Appointing and removing the Chief Executive and establishing their remuneration package 

• Contributing to and final approval of vision, mission and values statements 

• Contributing to and final approval of the budget and business plan and associated performance objectives 

• Contributing to and final approval of the Strategic Plan and associated performance measures 

• Implementation of strategy and ensuring appropriate resources are available 

• Reviewing and ratifying policies for reserves, risk management and investment 

• Reviewing and ratifying leases and matters relating to property holdings 

• Monitoring risk management and internal compliance and control systems and assessments 

• Monitoring the performance of the Chief Executive and the Executive Leadership Group 

• Approving the authorisation structure applicable to capital expenditure and operational commitments  

• Approving and monitoring the progress of high risk projects 

• Overall governance of the charity 

• Approving and monitoring financial and other reporting 

• Appointment of bankers and auditors 

• Mergers and acquisitions along with major external collaborations 

• Legal claims 

 

The Board has developed a skills and diversity matrix which analyses the Board’s composition and also helps 

identify prospective trustees. The key areas of skill and diversity which have been identified are listed below. 

• Sector experience (private, public, third or multiple sectors) 

• Gender / ethnicity / culture 

• Skills / experience: 

o Legal 

o Service delivery 

o Marketing and communications 

o Fundraising 

o Third sector and social enterprise 

o Finance 

o General management and business 

o HR management and coaching 

o Health 

o Local knowledge and partnerships 

o Technology 

o Youth 

o Education 

o Creative sector 

o Insurance 

o Property 

o The arts 

o Church-related and faith-related matters 

    

The Board considers that it currently has an appropriate mix of skills, background experience and diversity of 

gender and ethnic backgrounds. The current Board has 12 Trustees and includes 25% female members; 42% of 

members are from BME communities; and 17% of members live within the local community. 
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Trustee Training   

 

A structured induction programme is in place for new trustees supplemented by ad hoc support from the Chair, 

Vice-Chair and the ELG with external training opportunities provided if appropriate. The Trustee Induction 

programme is reviewed, renewed and improved annually.  

 

In addition, the Board arranges Back to the Floor days for trustees. The purpose of these sessions is to give 

trustees hands-on experience of the Centre's work, covering a range of the programmes delivered. All trustees 

are regularly invited to events held at the Centre for the local community and are also encouraged to arrange 

individual one-to-one sessions in areas that particularly interest them, with the key objective being that trustees 

will be able to get a feel for the day-to-day operation of the Centre and build stronger relationships with the ELG 

and the wider staff team.  This was enhanced in July 2019 when several senior managers discussed their areas 

of responsibilities during the Board Strategy session. 

 

Trustee Biographies 

 

Monjur Ali grew up and has lived in Bromley by Bow all his life, having studied in local schools and tertiary college 

in Tower Hamlets. He has been involved in diverse local projects and organisations (e.g., member of the Poplar 

HARCA Estate Board for more than 10 years, member of the Patient Forum of St. Andrew's Health Centre and 

one of the founding members of the Bromley By Bow Community Organisation, Coventry Cross youth club). 

Monjur has deep knowledge and understanding of the diverse cultures, local issues and needs of the community 

that helps the Centre ensure its projects are relevant and effective. He became a Trustee on 25 September 2013. 

 

Simon Bevan is a Partner in Grant Thornton UK LLP and is a member of its Partnership Oversight Board. Simon 

is a qualified coach and has over 30 years' experience of auditing, and working with the stakeholders of, 

successful high growth businesses, especially in the professional services sector. He has been both Managing 

Partner and Senior Partner of a large accounting firm and therefore brings finance, leadership and governance 

experience to his role as Treasurer with the Board. Simon became a Trustee on 30 November 2011.  

 

Paul Brickell trained as a scientist and was Professor of Molecular Hematology at the Institute of Child Health at 

Great Ormond Street Hospital, University College London, where he ran a childhood cancer research 

department.  He changed career to focus on the revival of east London, first as Director of Regeneration and 

Chief Executive of the Centre and then as Chief Executive of Leaside Regeneration.  Paul now works for the 

London Legacy Development Corporation, which leads the development of QE Olympic Park, and is Chair of 

Poplar HARCA.  He became a Trustee on 12 December 2018. 

 

Michael Gould retired as a Lloyd’s insurance broker in 2000 and, since then, has been a volunteer for Thames 

North Synod of the United Reformed Church (“URC”). His main involvement has been in respect of property and 

finance and he brings this knowledge, along with governance and insurance experience, to the Centre. Mike is 

a Nominee of the URC and became a Trustee on 29 March 2012. 

 

Professor Ajit Lalvani is Head of Respiratory Infections at Imperial College London, Director of the National 

Institute for Health Research Health Protection Research Unit, Founding Director of the Tuberculosis Research 

Centre and Consultant Physician at Imperial College Healthcare NHS Trust. His research addresses the world’s 

most serious respiratory infections and spans the pathway from basic and translational science to public health 

and societal impact. His governance experience includes roles on academic and funding committees at the 

Wellcome Trust, India Alliance, Medical Research Council, Royal College of Physicians and Royal Society of 

Medicine. Ajit founded a University of Oxford biotech company based on his innovations and shares the Centre’s 

mission to improve public health and reverse health inequalities through tackling their social determinants and 

empowering underprivileged communities. He became a Trustee on 11 March 2014 and chairs the Board.  
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Marcia Maximin is a lifelong resident of Bromley by Bow and has been a keen user and supporter of the charity’s 

work over many years. Her first connection was as a teenager when she and her family engaged in a broad range 

of the Centre’s projects. When Marcia left school, she began her working life with McDonalds UK and she has 

remained with them ever since, now working in finance in the company’s UK headquarters in the City of London. 

She lives on Bow Bridge Estate and was recently elected Chair of Poplar Harca’s residents’ Estate Board.  She 

became a Trustee on 1 March 2017. 

 

Dr Savitha Pushparajah is a GP Partner in the Bromley by Bow Health Partnership, which has a close working 

relationship with the Centre and operates three GP surgeries and a Walk-in Centre in Tower Hamlets. She has 

15 years' experience of providing healthcare to patients and works closely with communities living in Tower 

Hamlets. Savitha has a good understanding of the health inequalities and social needs of this community and 

brings this knowledge to the Board, which she joined as a Trustee on 26 March 2009.  

 

Obafemi Shokoya was born and brought up in the area surrounding the Centre.  He worked as an NHS hospital 

pharmacist for more than twenty years, during which time he gained an MBA.  Working as a Chief Pharmacist, 

he implemented major changes and turned around three acute provider hospital pharmacy departments.  Various 

senior roles in a number of NHS trusts afforded him the opportunity of being directly involved in many complex 

cultures across different sectors of the health and care system. He collaborates closely with the King’s Fund in 

developing his personal leadership practices and, for many years, has been interested in digital healthcare 

delivery and how technology can be used as a tool to leverage innovation and transformational change.  He 

became a Trustee on 12 December 2018. 

 

David Smeed is an executive level businessman with extensive experience of strategic business development, 

throughout Europe, in healthcare, property and property services. He is currently a Director at a Public Health 

Consultancy, PHAST CIC, with a focus on business development and operations. In the past, his roles have 

included Director of Development at UME Investment Ltd, a specialised Healthcare PFI investor, Managing 

Director at Bank of America Corporate Finance London and Managing Director of SCIC UK Ltd a French state-

owned property services group. David’s key competencies are in finance, business development and 

management.  He became a Trustee on 8 June 2016. David chairs the Board Effectiveness sub-Committee and 

became Vice Chair in March 2018. 

 

Rachel Smith is co-founder and COO of ExchangeWire, which publishes an advertising and marketing technology 

publication, and co-founded Wirecorp, which includes two other technology titles, and provides strategic oversight 

to the company’s global operations.  She has provided advice to a number of technology companies.  Prior to 

this, Rachel spent ten years in the public sector working with management and politicians at a local and national 

level, in the UK and Australia.  This included responsibility for corporate customer services, community 

engagement, public/private partnerships, voluntary and community sector services, media, communications and 

PR.  She became a Trustee on 16 April 2019. 

 

Neil Smith spent a large part of his professional life outside the UK working for Unilever in France, Holland, the 

Ivory Coast and the USA following which he joined Yoplait in France, participating in the private equity buyout of 

the Group. Neil is a finance professional, now retired, and is trustee of a group of academies in Thanet and non-

executive director of a company in the Health and Wellbeing sector. He became a Trustee on 12 December 2018. 

 

Peter Thorne is a qualified solicitor with over 33 years of experience of advising clients developing, investing and 

occupying real estate, including major high profile developments in central London.  Prior to this he was a partner 

in Wragge & Co where he developed and was an elected member of the firm’s management board for a period 

of five years.  In 2003, he moved to Wragge’s London office to head up and develop its real estate team and 

following its mergers with Lawrence Graham and subsequently Gowling, continued as partner until April 2018 

when he retired as a partner and has remained as a consultant to the firm.  He became a Trustee on 21 

September 2017 and chairs the Property sub-committee. 
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Trustees during the period  

 

During the year, there were five Board meetings. The membership of the Board from 1 July 2018 to the date of 

this Trustees' Report is listed below.  The table also shows the current membership of the Board sub-committees.  

All trustees are welcome to attend any sub-committee meeting should they wish. 

 

  Sub-Committee Membership 

  Finance Property Board 

Effectiveness 

Monjur Ali     

Simon Bevan  Chair  Member 

Paul Brickell appointed 12/12/18               Member  

Sarah Burton resigned 18/07/18    

Michael Gould                                                                                              Member  

Ajit Lalvani                                                                                                     

Marcia Maximin     

Savitha Pushparajah   Member  Member 

Penny Shimmin resigned 18/07/18    

Obafemi Shokoya appointed 12/12/18   Member 

David Smeed  Member Member Chair 

Rachel Smith appointed 16/04/19  Member Member 

Neil Smith appointed 12/12/18 Member   

Peter Thorne   Chair  

Sophie Timson resigned 18/09/18    

 

The charity’s insurance cover includes Indemnity Insurance for Trustees. 

 

Board Sub-Committees  

 

There are three Board sub-committees, which are important for the effectiveness of the Board as a whole. The 

Board makes every effort to ensure all sub-committees comprise the right balance of appropriately skilled trustees 

and ELG members.  In order to ensure there is a consistency of approach across the sub-committees, the Vice-

Chair attends all the meetings.  

 

 
 

 Provides guidance 

concerning the financial 

management of the Centre 

and monitors risk 

management and the 

production and audit of the 

financial statements 

 Manages property issues, 

which are becoming 

increasingly important for 

the Centre as expansion 

plans are reviewed and 

discussed 

 Reviews the recruitment of 

Trustees, succession 

planning for the Board, 

Board effectiveness, CEO’s 

remuneration and appraisal, 

and other governance 

matters 

 

Trustee Board

Finance Property Board Effectiveness 
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The Board continues to monitor the effectiveness of these sub-committees as part of its annual effectiveness 

review. All current sub-committees will continue in their current form for a further 12 months. 

 

Whilst the Trustees are responsible for oversight over the work of the Charity, day-to-day operations and 

decision-making continue to be delegated to Rob Trimble, the Chief Executive, who reports directly to the Board. 

Rob, now in his eighteenth year as Chief Executive, leads the organisation and chairs the ELG.  The members 

of the ELG are Dr Julia Davis (Assistant Chief Executive), Catherine Tollington (Executive Director) and Michael 

Barnett (Finance Director). 

 

The Board has established appropriate controls and reporting mechanisms to ensure that the ELG operates 

within the scope of the powers delegated to it. The Board has determined Reserved Powers (as listed above) 

which only it can ultimately exercise. 

 

All matters not specifically reserved to the Board and necessary for the day-to-day operations of the charity are 

delegated to management. The specific responsibilities of management are listed below. 

• Operate within delegated authority limits set by the Board 

• Reporting to the Board in a timely manner and against agreed criteria 

• Formulating and recommending the strategic direction of the charity 

• Translating the approved strategic plan into annual operating and financial plans 

• Managing human, physical and financial resources 

• Compliance with relevant laws and regulations 

• Deliver agreed performance measures 

• Develop, implement and manage the risk management, internal compliance and control systems 

• Develop, implement and update policies and procedures 

 

The members of the ELG are not directors for the purposes of company law. 

 

Diversity and Disability  

 

The Charity has a strong commitment to developing the diversity of its staff and volunteers through equal 

opportunity policies, training, targets and practical action. This includes encouraging applications from people 

with disabilities, developing their skills and taking every reasonable measure to adapt our premises and working 

conditions to enable them to work or volunteer. The Bromley by Bow Centre is a very diverse organisation. We 

pride ourselves that our delivery and support teams comprise many backgrounds and cultures and represent 

over 30 different nationalities.  Between us, we speak more than 20 different languages and dialects. 

 

Remuneration Policy 

 

Salaries for all posts are banded within a range commensurate with the job role.  Pay increases are awarded on 

promotion and in line with cost of living increases. We are a London Living Wage employer. 

 

In addition, the CEO’s performance appraisal and remuneration review is managed by the Board Effectiveness 

sub-committee which makes recommendations on setting the salary of the CEO to the Board for approval.  
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D. Principal Risks and Uncertainties 
 

Risk Management 

 

As part of its ongoing responsibility for ensuring the identification and management of risk, the Board adopts a 

rolling assessment of strategic and operational risk at three levels, i.e., core, project and support.   

 

This process of risk assessment is reviewed on a regular basis by the Finance sub-committee which in turn 

reports into the Board. On an annual basis, the ELG report to the Board on the highest level risks and their 

mitigating actions. The severity of a risk is assessed in two ways: 

• Current Assessment - based on the perceived severity and probability of occurrence which, when multiplied 

together, results in a raw risk factor; and 

• Assessment after Action - based on identified mitigating actions being taken and reducing the probability of 

occurrence, resulting in a revised risk factor. 

 

The Board is particularly interested in: 

• new areas of risk which carry a high raw risk assessment;  

• areas of risk for which the identified mitigating action has not been implemented;  

• risks that, after mitigation, carry a high retained risk factor; and 

• risks that appear but which have yet to be been identified on the risk matrix. 

 

Key Risks 

 

Risks at a Centre level are grouped under the following five headings: impact, financial sustainability, compliance, 

reputation and major operational. The key risks after mitigation that the Board is currently focusing on are listed 

below. 

• Financial – the challenge of securing sufficient unrestricted funds and having a strong pipeline of restricted 

income against the needs of the budget and forecast 

• Central and Local Government – material changes in national policy or local statutory implementation of policy  

• Organisational change and HR – the potential impact arising from the need to renew our structures and the 

ability to attract and retain talented staff 

• Growth – failure to take opportunities when they arise, the uncertainty caused by payments by results 

contracts and capacity of the Centre’s infrastructure to support an increase in service delivery  

• Cyber security and data protection – failure to adequately protect the Centre’s data in a sector which is 

constantly evolving and changing with increasingly stringent cyber security obligations through legislation 

 

In addition, the Board is reviewing the risks around Safeguarding at their meeting on December 3rd.   

 

Key risks, and their potential impact on income and the use of the charity’s services, are monitored continually 

and reviewed regularly by the ELG and Finance sub-committee. 
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E Review of Financial Position  
 

The Centre's business model 

 

The Bromley by Bow Centre derives its income from a number of sources. Almost all our restricted income results 

from the delivery of services from our different programmes (see “Income from Charitable Activities” in the SOFA) 

and comes from a range of sources, i.e., statutory bodies, corporates, housing associations, social landlords and 

trusts. In addition, the Centre generates unrestricted income principally from fundraising, from the support of local 

community partners and from its property assets.  

 

Results for the year 

 

The year to June 2019 represented a major turnaround from the previous twelve months following successful 

actions to improve our approach to fundraising, with unrestricted income from donations and legacies up 51% to 

£490k (£294k in 2018), increase our focus on the management of projects, rebuild the Development and Finance 

teams and reduce back office costs. Nonetheless, the difficult funding climate and intense competition for some 

service delivery contracts has resulted in a deficit for the year of £246k (£925k in 2018).  As a result, net current 

liabilities increased to £622k (£312k in 2018).  The actions to continue the turnaround in 2020 and reduce net 

current liabilities are covered below under Reserves.  

 

Total income grew 5% on the previous year (14% decrease in 2018) to £3.9m (£3.8m in 2018) as income from 

donations and other trading activities improved. Expenditure decreased 11% from the previous year to £4.2m 

(£4.7m in 2017) as the Centre worked hard to reduce costs and improve margins.   

 

The broad sources of the Centre’s funding in recent years are shown below. 

 

Nature 

 

Source 2018-19 2017-18 2016-17 2015-16 

Restricted Statutory 40% 46% 42% 40% 

 Corporate 18% 19% 18% 21% 

 Housing Associations and Social Landlords 3% 2% 2% 2% 

 Trusts 10% 11% 12% 9% 

 Total 71% 78% 74% 72% 

      

Unrestricted Income from hire of space  9% 8% 8% 8% 

 Other activities 20% 14% 16% 20% 

 Total 29% 22% 26% 28% 

 

  

Reserves 

 

At 30 June 2019, the charity’s unrestricted funds were in surplus by £1,699k (2018: £1,862k) of which £2,868k 

represents the Centre’s fixed assets. Restricted funds at 30 June 2019 stood at zero (2018: £83k). Total reserves 

decreased to £1,699k (2018: £1,945k), mainly represented by tangible assets with a net book value of £2,868k 

(2018: £2,854k).  
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The charity's Reserves Policy seeks to protect its clients and staff by ensuring that services can continue to 

operate should unforeseen fluctuations in income or expenditure occur.  The Board has established a Reserves 

Policy to protect and safeguard the assets of the Centre.  

 

The Board reviewed the Reserves policy in September 2019 and retained the definition of Free Reserves as 

Undesignated Net Current Assets, which is effectively working capital available. Under this definition, Free 

Reserves at 30 June 2019 were in deficit by £622k (2018: £395k in deficit) and can be seen in note 18.   

 

The new Reserves policy seeks to return Free Reserves to a positive position (previously the target was for Free 

Reserves to be within a range set at no lower than £650k and no higher than £850k) and this is one of the Board's 

key priorities. Trustees and management are clear on the need to redress the deficit in Free Reserves and this 

is of the highest importance in the new financial year. To achieve this, the agreed budget for the new financial 

year shows a healthy surplus and steps to deliver this include:  

• a major push to increase unrestricted income on the back of the Centre’s 35th Anniversary;  

• further growth in Service Delivery income based on existing contracts and new bids and propositions that are 

being developed; 

• ongoing improvements in margins on service delivery contracts;  

• completion of a review into the service delivery operating model;  

• a full review of all suppliers and all back office costs to ensure that optimum value for money is obtained 

subject to sustainability and ethical considerations; 

• refinancing of existing borrowings to reduce interest costs; and 

• a number of small scale changes to ways of working and spending. 

 

Cash and Cash Flow 

 

Cash, which has been tightly managed this year, remains adequate with funds of £435k (2018: £270k) as at 30 

June 2019. As some of the charity's income is received in large, irregular amounts, the funds held by the charity 

fluctuates during the year. To ensure that these fluctuations did not cause short term cash flow difficulties, two 

loans at zero interest were obtained with £175k outstanding as at 30 June 2019 (2018: Nil). 

 

The charity’s Investment Policy seeks to produce the best financial return for uncommitted funds within an 

acceptable level of risk. 

 

After four months of the 2019-20 financial year, the charity has secured 70% of the forecast income for the year 

and holds numerous contracts that extend into the 2020-21 financial year.  It also holds significant assets, some 

of which have not been revalued for Balance Sheet purposes and could be sold if required, and is in advanced 

negotiations to obtain funding facilities of up to £500k.  In light of this, the good start to the new financial year, 

and in consideration of the value that could be realised from the fixed assets the charity holds, the trustees 

consider that there are no material uncertainties about the charitable company's ability to continue as a going 

concern. 
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F Statement of the Responsibilities of the Trustees 
 

The trustees (who are also directors of The Bromley by Bow Centre for the purposes of company law) are 

responsible for preparing the trustees’ annual report, and the financial statements in accordance with applicable 

law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 

 

Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and 

fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of the incoming resources and application of 

resources, including the income and expenditure, of the charitable company for that period. In preparing these 

financial statements, the trustees are required to: 

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 

• observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP; 

• make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 

• state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards and statements of recommended practice have been 

followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and 

• prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the 

charity will continue in operation. 

 

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at 

any time the financial position of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements 

comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable 

company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

 

In so far as the trustees are aware: 

• there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company’s auditor is unaware; and 

• the trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant 

audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information. 

 

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included 

on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and 

dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions. 

 

Auditor 

 

Sayer Vincent LLP acted as the charitable company's auditor during the year and has expressed its willingness 

to continue in that capacity. 

 

The trustees’ annual report has been approved by the trustees on 3 December 2019 and signed on their behalf 

by  

 

 

 

Ajit Lalvani 

Chair  
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Opinion 
 

We have audited the financial statements of The Bromley by Bow Centre (the ‘charitable company’) for the year 

ended 30 June 2019 which comprise the statement of financial activities, balance sheet, statement of cash flows 

and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial 

reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting 

Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK 

and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 

 

In our opinion, the financial statements: 

• Give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company’s affairs as at 30 June 2019 and of its incoming 

resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended 

• Have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice 

• Have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 

 

Basis for opinion 
 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable 

law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit 

of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the charitable company in accordance 

with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the 

FRC’s Ethical Standard and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 

requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our opinion. 

 

Conclusions relating to going concern 

 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to 

report to you where: 

• The trustees’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the f inancial statements is 

not appropriate; or 

• The trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast 

significant doubt about the charitable company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of 

accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised 

for issue. 

 

Other information 
 

The other information comprises the information included in the trustees’ annual report, other than the financial 

statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The trustees are responsible for the other information. Our opinion 

on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly 

stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit 

of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether 

the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the 

audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent 

material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial 

statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we 

conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.  

 

We have nothing to report in this regard. 
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Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 
 

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: 

• The information given in the trustees’ annual report, for the financial year for which the financial statements 

are prepared is consistent with the financial statements 

• The trustees’ annual report, has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements 

   

Matters on which we are required to report by exception 
 

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the charitable company and its environment obtained in the 

course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the trustees’ annual report.  

 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires 

us to report to you if, in our opinion: 

• Adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received 

from branches not visited by us; or 

• The financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or 

• Certain disclosures of trustees’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or 

• We have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or 

• The trustees were not entitled to prepare the financial statements in accordance with the small companies’ 

regime and take advantage of the small companies’ exemptions in preparing the trustees’ annual report and 

from the requirement to prepare a strategic report. 

  

Responsibilities of trustees 
 

As explained more fully in the statement of trustees’ responsibilities set out in the trustees’ annual report, the 

trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible 

for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for 

such internal control as the trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the charitable company’s ability 

to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 

concern basis of accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the charitable company or to cease 

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 

from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (UK), we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 

resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
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• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 

entity’s internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 

and related disclosures made by the trustees. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the trustees’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 

the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 

cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 

financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 

on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 

may cause the entity to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, 

and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 

achieves fair presentation. 

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 

identify during our audit. 

 

Use of our report 
 

This report is made solely to the charitable company's members as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 

16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable 

company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other 

purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than 

the charitable company and the charitable company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or 

for the opinions we have formed. 

 

 

 

 

Joanna Pittman (Senior statutory auditor)  

5 December 2019 

for and on behalf of Sayer Vincent LLP, Statutory Auditor 

Invicta House, 108-114 Golden Lane, LONDON, EC1Y 0TL  

 



2019 2018

Unrestricted Restricted Total Unrestricted Restricted Total

Note £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Income from:

2 490 26 516 294 84 378

4

- 842 842 - 687 687

- 1,153 1,153 - 1,261 1,261

- 180 180 - 172 172

- 118 118 - 122 122

- 473 473 - 495 495

187 - 187 112 211 323

3 466 - 466 314 - 314

1 - 1 1 - 1

1,144 2,792 3,936 721 3,032 3,753

Raising funds 387 26 413 356 84 440

- 960 960 - 979 979

- 1,378 1,378 - 1,522 1,522

- 296 296 - 313 313

- 149 149 - 147 147

- 601 601 - 702 702

229 - 229 143 264 407

Other trading activities 156 - 156 168 - 168

5 772 3,410 4,182 667 4,011 4,678

6 372 (618) (246) 54 (979) (925)

(535) 535 - 1,479 (1,479) -

(163) (83) (246) 1,533 (2,458) (925)

Reconciliation of funds:

1,862 83 1,945 329 2,541 2,870

1,699 - 1,699 1,862 83 1,945

The Bromley by Bow Centre

Statement of financial activities (incorporating an income and expenditure account)

For the year ended 30 June 2019

Donations and legacies

Charitable activities

Insights

Investment income 

Total income

Other trading activities

Employment & Skills

Communities, Health & Wellbeing

Community Connections

Beyond Business

Advice Centre

Expenditure on:

Net income / (expenditure) for the year

Total expenditure

Charitable activities

Employment & Skills

Community Connections

Beyond Business

Advice Centre

Communities, Health & Wellbeing

Insights

Total funds brought forward

Total funds carried forward

All of the above results are derived from continuing activities. There were no other recognised gains or losses other than those stated above. Movements in 

funds are disclosed in Note 19 to the financial statements.

Transfers between funds

Net movement in funds 
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2019 2018

Note £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Fixed assets:

11 2,868 2,854

2,868 2,854

Current assets:

13 529 805

435 270

964 1,075

Liabilities:

14 (1,586) (1,387)

(622) (312)

2,246 2,542

16 (547) (597)

1,699 1,945

19

- 83

14 15

1,685 1,847

Total unrestricted funds 1,699 1,862-

1,699 1,945

Chair

Ajit Lalvani

The Bromley by Bow Centre

As at 30 June 2019

Cash at bank and in hand

Tangible assets

Balance sheet

Company no. 2942840

Debtors

Creditors: amounts falling due after one year

Total net assets

Unrestricted income funds:

Designated funds

The funds of the charity:

Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Net current liabilities

General funds

Approved by the trustees on 3 December 2019 and signed on their behalf by

Total charity funds

Restricted income funds
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Statement of cash flows

Note

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

20

391 (2)

1 1

(49) (53)

(127) (247)

(175) (299)

(50) (41)

(50) (41)

166 (342)

270 612

436 270

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Net cash provided by / (used in) financing activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year

The Bromley by Bow Centre

For the year ended 30 June 2019

2019 2018

Repayments of borrowing

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Net cash provided by / (used in) investing activities

Net cash provided by / (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Bank interest received

Interest paid

Purchase of fixed assets
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1

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

f)

Assets and liabilities are initially recognised at historical cost or transaction value unless otherwise stated in the 

relevant accounting policy or note.

Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

Statutory information

Public benefit entity

Going concern

Income

Donations of cash, gifts, services and facilities

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of 

Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting 

Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (effective 1 January 2015) - (Charities SORP FRS 102), 

the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (September 2015) and the 

Companies Act 2006.

After 4 months of the 2019-20 financial year, the charity has secured 70% of the forecast income for the year and 

holds numerous contracts that extend into the 2020-21 financial year.  It also holds significant assets, some of which 

have not been revalued for Balance Sheet purposes, that could be sold if required.  In light of the good start to the 

new financial year, and in consideration of the value that could be realised from the fixed assets the charity holds, the 

trustees consider that there are no material uncertainties about the charitable company's ability to continue as a 

going concern.

During the year, the charity had net outgoing funds of £246k. At year end, there was a deficit on free reserves of 

£622k.  At the balance sheet date, the charity had bank balances totalling £435k and net current liabilities of £622k.  

The charitable company meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.

For the year ended 30 June 2019

The Bromley by Bow Centre

Notes to the financial statements

The Bromley by Bow Centre is a charitable company limited by guarantee and is incorporated in the UK. The 

registered office address is St Leonards Street, Bromley by Bow, London, E3 3BT.

Cash donations are recognised as income upon entitlement.

Income from government and other grants, whether ‘capital’ grants or ‘revenue’ grants, is recognised when the 

charity has entitlement to the funds, any performance conditions attached to the grants have been met, it is probable 

that the income will be received and the amount can be measured reliably and is not deferred; else the income is 

deferred until the above criteria is fulfilled, normally as per the funder's written conditions.

Income is recognised when the charity has entitlement to the funds, any performance conditions attached to the 

income have been met, it is probable that the income will be received and that the amount can be measured reliably.

The trustees do not consider that there are any sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date that have a 

significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next 

reporting period.

Income received in advance of the provision of a specified service is deferred until the criteria for income recognition 

are met.

Donated professional services and donated facilities are recognised as income when the charity has control over the 

item or received the service, any conditions associated with the donation have been met, the receipt of economic 

benefit from the use by the charity of the item is probable and that economic benefit can be measured reliably. In 

accordance with the Charities SORP (FRS 102), volunteer time is not recognised so refer to the trustees’ annual report 

for more information about their contribution.
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For the year ended 30 June 2019

The Bromley by Bow Centre

Notes to the financial statements

1

g)

h)

i)





j)

k)

l)









Operating leases

20% of cost per year

Freehold Buildings 2% of cost per year
Computer Equipment
Other Equipment

20-25% of cost per year

Costs of raising funds relate to the costs incurred by the charitable company in inducing third parties to make 

voluntary contributions to it, as well as the cost of any activities with a fundraising purpose

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to make a payment to a third party, it is 

probable that settlement will be required and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is 

classified under the following activity headings:

Unrestricted funds are donations and other incoming resources received or generated for the charitable purposes.

Restricted funds are to be used for specific purposes as laid down by the donor.  Expenditure which meets these 

criteria is charged to the fund.

Interest on funds held on deposit is included when receivable and the amount can be measured reliably by the 

charity; this is normally upon notification of the interest paid or payable by the bank.

Interest receivable

Accounting policies (continued)

Items of equipment are capitalised where the purchase price exceeds £500. Depreciation costs are allocated to 

activities on the basis of the use of the related assets in those activities. Assets are reviewed for impairment if 

circumstances indicate their carrying value may exceed their net realisable value and value in use.

Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to write down the cost of each asset to its estimated residual value over 

its expected useful life. Land is not depreciated.  The depreciation rates in use are as follows:

Fixtures and Fittings 10-20% of cost per year

Governance costs are the costs associated with the governance arrangements of the charity.  These costs are 

associated with constitutional and statutory requirements and include any costs associated with the strategic 

management of the charity’s activities.

Charitable expenditure comprises those costs incurred by the charity in the delivery of services to its beneficiaries. It

includes both costs that can be allocated directly to such activities and those costs of an indirect nature necessary to

support them.

Rental charges are charged on a straight line basis over the term of the lease.

Tangible fixed assets

Resources expended are allocated to the particular activity where the cost relates directly to that activity.  Other costs, 

which are attributable to more than one activity, are apportioned across cost categories. The basis of allocation 

reflects the staff resources absorbed by that activity. 

Resources expended are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on an accruals basis, inclusive of any VAT

which cannot be recovered.

Irrecoverable VAT is charged as a cost against the activity for which the expenditure was incurred.

Expenditure on charitable activities includes the costs of delivering services and other activities undertaken to 

further the purposes of the charity and their associated support costs

Allocation of support costs

Fund accounting

Expenditure and irrecoverable VAT

Designated funds are unrestricted funds earmarked by the trustees for particular purposes.

37



For the year ended 30 June 2019

The Bromley by Bow Centre

Notes to the financial statements

1

m)

n)

o)

p)

q)

2

2019 2018

Unrestricted Total Unrestricted Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

490 26 516 212 84 296
- - - 82 - 82

490 26 516 294 84 378

Income from donations and legacies

Creditors and provisions

Debtors

Cash at bank and in hand

Restricted

The charity only has financial assets and financial liabilities of a kind that qualify as basic financial instruments. Basic 

financial instruments are initially recognised at transaction value and subsequently measured at their settlement value 

with the exception of bank loans which are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 

method.

Financial Instruments

Pensions

Accounting policies (continued)

Other Income

Restricted

Donations

Contributions payable to employees' private defined contribution pension plans are charged to the Statement of 

Financial Activities in the period to which they relate.

Creditors and provisions are recognised where the charity has a present obligation resulting from a past event that 

will probably result in the transfer of funds to a third party and the amount due to settle the obligation can be 

measured or estimated reliably. Creditors and provisions are normally recognised at their settlement amount after 

allowing for any trade discounts due.

Cash at bank and cash in hand includes cash and short term highly liquid investments with a short maturity of three 

months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account.  

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount due after any trade discount offered. Prepayments 

are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.
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3 Other Trading Income

2019 2018

Unrestricted Restricted Total Unrestricted Restricted Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Income from hire of space 359 - 359 303 - 303

Fundraising activities 73 - 73 11 - 11

Other Trading Income 35 - 35 - -
Total Other Trading Income 466 - 466 314 - 314

4

2019 2018

Unrestricted Restricted Total Unrestricted Restricted Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Aim4Work - 188 188 - 104 104

Create Your Future - 207 207 - 97 97

ELATT - Apprenticeship Programme - - - - 44 44

ESOL for Work - 176 176 - 77 77

National Careers Service - 18 18 - 94 94

Two Way Street - - - - 50 50

Work routes 50+ - 146 146 - 89 89

Others - 107 107 - 132 132

- 842 842 - 687 687

Cancer Prescribing - 173 173 - 166 166

Communities Driving Change - 189 189 - 108 108

Fit 4 Life Centre - 203 203 - 286 286

Fit 4 Life Group - - - - 180 180

Healthy Cities - 71 71 - 70 70

Motivate East - - - - 56 56

My Support - 239 239 - 243 243

Social Prescriber - 72 72 - 65 65

Others - 206 206 - 87 87

- 1,153 1,153 - 1,261 1,261

Connection Zone - 26 26 - - -

Time Bank - 117 117 - 104 104

Top Tots Family Learning - - - - 25 25

Others - 37 37 - 43 43

- 180 180 - 172 172

Investec - 118 118 - 119 119

Others - - - - 3 3

- 118 118 - 122 122

East End Energy Fit - 135 135 - 115 115

Eastend Homes - 50 50 - 47 47

Getting on with money - 103 103 - 97 97

LAP6 Generalist Advice Services - 50 50 - 50 50

UK Power Networks - - - - 111 111

Others - 135 135 - 75 75

- 473 473 - 495 495

Insights (formerly School of Integrated Solutions)
18 - 18 9 - 9

50 - 50 55 - 55

60 - 60 28 - 28

59 - 59 20 211 231

187 - 187 112 211 323

Total Charitable activities 187 2,766 2,953 112 2,948 3,060

Total funding from Government sources is £1.3M (2018: £1.5M)

The Bromley by Bow Centre

Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 30 June 2019

Community Connections

Charitable Activities

Income from charitable activities

Consultancy

Research and Evaluation

Employment & Skills

Communities, Health & Wellbeing

Beyond Business

Advice Centre

Action for Bow

Tours
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5a

Raising 

funds

Other 

trading 

activities

Employment 

& Skills

Communities, 

Health & 

Wellbeing

Community 

Connections

Beyond 

Business

Advice 

Centre Insights

Governance 

costs

Support 

costs

2019 

Total

2018     

Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Staff costs (Note 7) 268 80 590 743 150 89 364 145 - 616 3,045 3,259

Service Delivery Costs 36 - 73 261 71 15 53 25 - - 534 766
Centre Delivery Costs

Facilities, Property, Health and Safety - 43 - - - - - - - 101 144 119

Finance and Accounting - - - - - - - - 18 247 265 224

General Management, Other - - - - - - - - - 125 125 241

Human Resources and Hospitality - - - - - - - - - 23 23 29
Information and Communications - - - - - - - - - 46 46 40

304 123 663 1,004 221 104 417 170 18 1,158 4,182 4,678

Governance costs 2 1 4 5 1 1 3 1 (18) - - -

Support costs 107 32 293 369 74 44 181 58 - (1,158) - -

Total expenditure 2019 413 156 960 1,378 296 149 601 229 - 4,182 4,678

Total expenditure 2018 440 168 979 1,522 313 147 702 407 - - 4,678

Analysis of expenditure 

Charitable activities

The Bromley by Bow Centre

Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 30 June 2019

40



5b

Raising 

funds

Other 

trading 

activities

Employment 

& Skills

Communities, 

Health & 

Wellbeing

Community 

Connections

Beyond 

Business

Advice 

Centre Insights

Governance 

costs

Support 

costs

2018 

Total

2017     

Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Staff costs (Note 7) 227 85 621 765 156 88 435 182 - 700 3,259 2,924

Service Delivery Costs 114 - 30 353 75 12 37 145 - - 766 782

Centre Delivery Costs

Facilities, Property, Health and Safety - 45 - - - - - - - 74 119 158

Finance and Accounting - - - - - - - - 16 208 224 248

General Management, Other - - - - - - - - - 241 241 250

Human Resources and Hospitality - - - - - - - - - 29 29 28
Information and Communications - - - - - - - - - 40 40 41

341 130 651 1,118 231 100 472 327 16 1,292 4,678 4,430

Governance costs 1 1 4 4 1 1 3 1 (16) - - -

Support costs 98 37 324 400 81 46 227 79 - (1,292) - -

Total expenditure 2018 440 168 979 1,522 313 147 702 407 - - 4,678 4,430

The Bromley by Bow Centre

Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 30 June 2019

Analysis of expenditure 

Charitable activities
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6

2019 2018

£'000 £'000

113 102

17 17

Audit 14 13
Under accrual from prior year 4 3

7

2019 2018

£'000 £'000

2,737 2,889

- 78

243 253

65 39

3,045 3,259

2019 2018

No. No.

- -
£70,000 - £79,999 1 1

1 1

8

2019 2018

No. No.

Costs of raising funds 5 4

Other trading activities 1 1

Employment & Skills 21 21

Communities, Health & Wellbeing 35 33

Community Connections 8 13

Beyond Business 2 2

Advice Centre 17 17

5 7

25 29

119 127

Analysis of staff costs, trustee remuneration and expenses, and the cost of key management personnel

Employer’s contribution to defined contribution pension schemes

Support

Salaries and wages

Social security costs

Redundancy and termination costs

Insights

Staff numbers

The charity trustees were not paid or received any other benefits from employment with the charity in the year (2018: £nil).  No charity 

trustee received payment for professional or other services supplied to the charity (2018: £Nil).

The following number of employees received employee benefits during the year between:

£60,000 - £69,999

£80,000 - £89,999

The total employee benefits including pension contributions and employer's NIC of the key management personnel were £221,259 

(2018: £176,968). None of the four key management personnel left during the year.

The average number of employees (head count based on number of staff employed) during the year was as follows:

The Bromley by Bow Centre

For the year ended 30 June 2019

Trustees' expenses represents the payment or reimbursement of travel and subsistence costs totalling £Nil (2018: £470) incurred by  

(2018: 1) member relating to attendance at meetings of the trustees.

Notes to the financial statements

Net income / (expenditure) for the year

Auditors' remuneration (excluding VAT):

This is stated after charging / (crediting):

Depreciation

Operating lease rentals: Property

Staff costs were as follows:
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The Bromley by Bow Centre

For the year ended 30 June 2019

Notes to the financial statements

9

10

11
Land and 

Buildings

Plant and 

Machinery

Fixtures and 

fittings

Computer 

Equipment Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

3,845 124 270 194 4,433
Reclassifications 213 (213) -

127 - - - 127

4,185 124 57 194 4,560

1,286 123 54 116 1,579

93 (5) 1 24 113

1,379 118 55 140 1,692

2,806 6 2 54 2,868

2,559 1 216 78 2,854

Land and Buildings Park Mary Buss Health Enterprise

Land Development House Centre Barn Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost or valuation

At the start of the year 235 212 24 2,951 423 3,845
Additions in year - - - 340 - 340

At the end of the year 235 212 24 3,291 423 4,185

Depreciation

At the start of the year - 54 9 1,115 108 1,286
Charge for the year - 3 1 96 (7) 93

At the end of the year - 57 10 1,211 101 1,379

Net book value

At the end of the year 235 155 14 2,080 322 2,806

At the start of the year 235 158 15 1,836 315 2,559

The charity encourages each of its major local partnership organisations, i.e., the Bromley by Bow Health Partnership, the London 

Borough of Tower Hamlets, Poplar HARCA and the United Reformed Church, to nominate a representative as a Trustee. In the normal 

course of its operation, the charity transacts financially, on an arms’ length basis,  with all of these organisations. Their representative 

on the Board of Trustees (see Biographies of the Trustees in the Trustees’ Report) has no direct interest in any of these transactions.

At the end of the year

At the end of the year

At the start of the year

Charge for the year

At the start of the year

Additions in year

During the year, £213k of Fixtures and Fittings relating to a new IT Suite were reclassified to be included in Buildings. An adjustment 

was made for Other Equipment within Plant and Machinery assets which has been over depreciated in a prior period resulting in a 

negative charge of £5k in the current period.

Related party transactions

At the start of the year

All fixed assets held are for the use of the charity, with the exception of Mary Buss House which is occupied by another charity on a 

long term lease; this property was gifted to the charity and was valued by the Trustees at that time. The Health Centre is subject to a 

charge as security for the loan from AVIVA which is shown in note 16.  Land with a value of £235,000 (2018: £235,000) is included 

within freehold property and not depreciated. All of the above assets are used for charitable purposes.

Cost or valuation

Depreciation

The charitable company is exempt from corporation tax as all its income is charitable and is applied for charitable purposes.

Taxation

During the year, the charity received an unrestricted £50,000 donation and a restricted donation of £12,000 from Vitabiotics Limited 

plus a £100,000 interest free loan from the Vitabiotics Foundation.  The Charity's chair, Ajit Lalvani, is a non-executive director of 

Vitabiotics Limited.  

During the year,  the Charity received grants and donations of £393,000 from Poplar Harca.  One of the charity's Trustees, Mr Paul 

Brickell, is the chair of Poplar Harca.  Two Trustees, Monjur Ali and Marcia Maximin, have positions on Poplar Harca Estate Boards.

During the year,  the Charity received interest free loans totalling £150,000 from the Bromley by Bow Health Partnership ("BBBHP").  

One of the Charity's Trustees, Dr Savitha Pushparajah, and the Chief Executive Officer, Robert Trimble, are Partners of BBBHP.  

During the year,  the Charity received grants and contract income totalling £756,000 from London Borough of Tower Hamlets ("LBTH"). 

Helal Uddin, the charity's Director of Community Engagement and Regeneration is also a Councillor of LBTH.  

There are no other donations from related parties which are outside the normal course of business.

Net book value

Tangible fixed assets

At the end of the year
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Notes to the financial statements

12

13
2019 2018
£'000 £'000

318 314

6 17

7 11

198 463

529 805

14
2019 2018
£'000 £'000

50 50
Bromley by Bow Health Practice Loan 75 -
Vitabiotics Foundation Loan 100 -

206 294

293 184

352 205

77 140

432 514

1,586 1,387

15

2019 2018
£'000 £'000

Balance at the beginning of the year 514 591

Amount released to income in the year (514) (591)

Amount deferred in the year 432 514

Balance at the end of the year 432 514

16
2019 2018
£'000 £'000

547 597

547 597

Investments

Through the charity's Beyond Business programme, which identifies potential new social enterprises and then guides and supports 

their launch, BbBC currently has a 5% shareholding in Grassroot Workshop CIC, Fat Macy’s Ltd, The Hard Yard Ltd, Appt Ltd and Juta 

Shoes Ltd. It has not been possible to arrive at a market value of these shareholdings at 30 June 2019, which in any event is not 

judged to be material.

Debtors

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors

Taxation and social security

Deferred income

Creditors: amounts falling due after one year

Deferred income comprises grants and other funding to be used in future accounting periods together with rent and other contractual 

income received in advance.

Accruals

Deferred income (note 15)

AVIVA Loan secured

AVIVA loan

Trade debtors

Other debtors

Prepayments

Accrued income

The AVIVA loan is secured by a first legal charge on the freehold land and buildings registered at HM Land Registry under the Title 

Number EGL332867. The original loan of £600,000 is repayable by amortised instalments of capital and interest over a thirty year 

period from September 1997; interest is repayable at 9.75%. An additional loan of £500,000 is repayable by amortised instalments of 

capital and interest over a twenty two year period from September 2005; interest is repayable at 5.73%. The remaining term of the 

loan is 8 years (June 2027).

Other creditors

The Vitabiotics Foundation loan of £100,000 is interest free and repayable by 30 September 2020. 

The Bromley by Bow Health Practice made interest free loans totalling £150,000.  £75,000 has been repaid and the balance of £75,000 

is repayable by 30 June 2020.
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17

18a

Fixed 

Assets

Long Term 

Liabilities

Total 

funds

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

- - - -

2,854 (622) (547) 1,685

14 - - 14

2,868 (622) (547) 1,699

18b

Fixed 

Assets

Long Term 

Liabilities

Total 

funds

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

- 83 - 83

2,839 (395) (597) 1,847

15 - - 15

2,854 (312) (597) 1,945

19a

At the start 

of the year Income Expenditure Transfers

At the end 

of the year

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Employment & Skills - 842 (903) 61 -

Communities, Health & Wellbeing - 1,153 (1,307) 154 -

Community Connections - 180 (282) 102 -

Beyond Business - 118 (140) 22 -

- 473 (566) 93 -

Insights - - - -

Business Development

Power to Change 83 - - (83) -

Other Business Development - 26 (26) - -

- - (186) 186 -

Total restricted funds 83 2,792 (3,410) 535 -

15 - (1) - 14

Total designated funds 15 - (1) - 14

General funds 1,847 1,144 (771) (535) 1,685

1,862 1,144 (772) (535) 1,699

1,945 3,936 (4,182) - 1,699

Movements in funds (current year)

Restricted funds:

Care and Community Activities

Unrestricted funds:

Designated funds:

Advice Centre

Other 

Capital Programme

Mary Buss House

Total funds 

Total unrestricted funds

Restricted Funds

Analysis of net assets between funds (prior year)

Restricted Funds

Capital Programme

General Fund

Designated Fund

Unrestricted Funds

Net assets at the end of the year

Net Current 

Assets

General Fund

Capital Programme

Unrestricted Funds

Net assets at the end of the year

Net Current 

Assets

Analysis of net assets between funds (current year)

Pension scheme

On 1 August 2014, and in compliance with workplace pension legislation, the company introduced a Group Personal Pension Plan 

arranged though Scottish Widows. The company contributes up to 6% of gross pay for all entitled employees depending on seniority, 

service and the employee's own contribution. At 30 June 2019 there were 78 (2018: 79) employees who chose to take advantage of 

this benefit. During the period the amount payable by the charity in respect of these post-retirement benefits amounted to £64,071 

(2018: £39,000).

Designated Fund
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19b

At the start 

of the year Income Expenditure Transfers

At the end 

of the year

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Employment & Skills - 687 (923) 236 -

Communities, Health & Wellbeing - 1,261 (1,453) 192 -

- 172 (299) 127 -

- 122 (139) 17 -

- 495 (663) 168 -

Insights - 211 (264) 53 -

Business Development 

Power to Change 296 - - (213) 83

Other Business Development - 84 (84) - -

2,245 - (186) (2,059) -

Total restricted funds 2,541 3,032 (4,011) (1,479) 83

16 - (1) - 15

Total designated funds 16 - (1) - 15

General funds 313 721 (666) 1,479 1,847

329 721 (667) 1,479 1,862

2,870 3,753 (4,678) - 1,945

20

2019 2018

£'000 £'000

Net income/(expenditure) for the reporting period (246) (925)

(as per the statement of financial activities)

Depreciation charges 113 103

Investment Income (1) (1)

Interest Paid 49 53

Decrease/(increase) in debtors 276 622

Increase/(decrease) in creditors 199 146

Net cash provided by / (used in) operating activities 391 (2)

Total funds 

Capital Programme

Movements in funds (prior year)

During the financial year to 30 June 2017, the Charity secured £296k from Power to Change to redevelop the Connection Zone, Café 

and the surgery. At 30 June 2019, there was no balance remaining relating to the fund.  For the year to 30 June 2018, it was 

determined that fixed assets previously held as restricted assets were not restricted and it was decided to transfer both restricted and 

unrestricted assets to general funds.  

Purposes of designated funds

Restricted funds:

Care and Community Activities

Purposes of restricted funds

Unrestricted funds:

Designated funds:

Mary Buss House

Total unrestricted funds

Reconciliation of net income to net cash flow from operating activities

Community Connections

Beyond Business

Advice Centre

The Charity was gifted, in 1997, the property Mary Buss House.  In line with the lease in place, the use of this property is designated 

for the benefit of MIND Tower Hamlets.

Other 

46



The Bromley by Bow Centre

For the year ended 30 June 2019

Notes to the financial statements

21

2019 2018

£'000 £'000

17 17

66 66

- 12

83 95

22

23

24 

2019 2018

£'000 £'000

159 59

The company occupies part of the premises of Bromley by Bow United Reformed Church at 1 Bruce Road, Bromley by Bow, London, E3

3HN. The rent charged for the period was £16,500.

Expiry Date:

Over five years

Operating lease commitments

The charity is a company limited by guarantee and has no share capital.  The liability of each member in the event of winding up is 

limited to £1.

Legal status of the charity

Funds held on behalf of other organisations 

Capital commitments

The Charity does not have any capital commitments to report at the balance sheet date.

Investec (Beyond Business Programme) 

At 30 June 2019, the Charity held the following amounts as a conduit for the Beyond Business Programme sponsored by Investec.  

These amounts will be paid to the winning social enterprises when they are ready to draw down the funds available to them.

Land and Buildings
At 30 June 2019, the Charity had annual commitments under operating leases as follows:

One to five years

Less than one year

47



The Bromley by Bow Centre 

Reference and administrative details 

For the year ended 30 June 2019 

 

48 

 

Company number  2942840 

 

Charity number  1041653 

 

Registered office and  St Leonards Street  

operational address  Bromley by Bow 

London E3 3BT 

 

Directors  Trustees, who are also directors under company law, at the date of this report are: 

 Monjur Ali 

 Simon Bevan  Treasurer 

 Paul Brickell 

 Michael Gould 

 Ajit Lalvani  Chair 

 Marcia Maximin 

 Savitha Pushparajah 

 Obafemi Shokoya 

 David Smeed  Vice-Chair 

 Neil Smith 

 Rachel Smith 

 Peter Thorne 

 

Company Secretary  Graham Rowbotham 

 

Chief Executive Officer  Robert Trimble 

 

Solicitors  Stephenson Harwood LLP 

  1 Finsbury Circus 

  London EC2M 7SH 

 

Bankers  Barclays Bank plc 

  36–38 South Street 

  Romford 

  Essex RM1 1RH 

 

Auditors  Sayer Vincent LLP 

  Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors 

  Invicta House 

  8-114 Golden Lane 

  London EC1Y 0TL 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

49 

 

 

 
Bromley by Bow Centre © Frank Creber 

Contact 

Registered office and operational address  

St Leonards Street  

Bromley by Bow 

London  

E3 3BT 

 

bbbc.org.uk 

 


